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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of HK Toll Road Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the Ind AS financial statements of HK Toll Road Private Limited ("the Company"),
which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2024, and the statement of profit and loss (including
cther comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year
then ended , and notes to the ind AS financial statements, including a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.(hereinafter referred to as ‘the Ind AS financial
statements’).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act’) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generatly
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and loss and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on March 31, 2024,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit fn accordance with the Standards on Auditing {SAs) specified under section
143 (10} of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the instiftute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there
under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note No. 35 of the accompanying financial statements wherein the company has
disclosed that the concession agreement has been terminated by NHAI (National Highway Authority of
India} and it has filed an application under section 17 of the Arbitration and Conciliation Act. Based on the
best estimates of the management, the Company expects that the outcome should be in favour of the
company due to which the company has not made a provision towards Impairment of Intangible Asset,

We also draw aftention to Note No. 9 of the accompanying financial statements wherein the company has
disclosed the status of the borrowings' account classified by the Bank {lender).

Uncertainty Reiated to Going Concern

a) We draw attention to Note No. 36 of the financial statements of the Company which indicates that
the Company has incurred net loss of Rs. 1,089.85 million during the year ended March 31, 2024,
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also the Company has a negative net-worth of Rs. 1,447.92 million as at March 31, 2024 due fo
fosses incurred during the year.

b} Further, the concession agreement has been terminated by NHAI and the project assets have
been handed over. This indicate that uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as going concern and meeting its liabilities existing at the balance
sheet date. However, on a prudent basis, the company has prepared the financial statements on
& going concern basis for the reasons stated in the said Note.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and in forming cur opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below
to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report,

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

intangible Assets: Toli Road Concession Arrangements

intangible assets arising out of service
concession arrangements are accounted for as
intangible assets where the company has a
contractual right to charge users of service when
the projects are completed.

Apart from above as per the service concession
agreement the Company is obligated to pay the
amount of premium to Naticnal Highways
Authority of India {NHAI}.

This premium obligation has been trealed as an
Intangible asset given it is paid towards getting
the right to earn revenue by constructing and
operating the roads during the concession
period. The total premium payable to the grantor
as per the Service Concession Arrangement is
also recognized as an “intangible assets” and the
corresponding obligation for committed premium
is recognized as premium obligation.

The intangible assets is measured at the fair
value of consideration transferred to acquire
asset, which is the fair value of consideration
received or receivable for the construction
services delivered,

The accounting for such toli road concession
arrangements is complex due to high level of
estimation uncertainty in determining the costs to
complete. This uncertainty is due to the nature of
the operations, which may be impacted by the
technical complexity of projects and the precision

As part of our audit, we;

Reviewed terms and conditions of toll
road concession arrangement, the
contractual sums and checked project
revenues and costs incurred against
underlying supporting documents that
arose the intangibie Assets.

Conducted site visits and discussed the
progress of the projects with project
managers for indications of any potential
disputes, variation order claims, known
technicaf issues or significant events that
could impact the amount of Intangible
assets recognized.

Analysed changes in estimates of costs
from prior periods and assessed the
consistency of these changes with
progress of the projects during the year,

Reviewed the projects revenue
generated during the current year against
the forecast initialty considered.

Assessed the adequacy of the
companies disclosures made in to the
financial statements
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of cost estimation as at balance sheet date. The
uncertainty and subjectivity could result in
estimation variances which will affect the amount
of intangible assets, and hence may have a
significant impact on the financial position of the
company. Accordingly, an intangible asset from
{oll road concession arrangement is identified as
a key audit matter.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the
financiat statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Ind
AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required o report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs, profitioss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibkility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities, selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internat financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the ind AS financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsibie for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of Directors is also responsibie for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always delect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individuaily or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professionai
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion, The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsibie for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such cantrols.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and refated disclosures made by management.

s Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exisis related {0 events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as
a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the ind AS financial statements represent the underiying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
maiters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless iaw or
regulation preciudes public disciosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
2024 determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016 ("the Order"} issued by the Central
Government in terms of section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement on the

matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent appiicable.

(A} As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that;

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of profit and loss, and the Statement of Cash Fiows dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d} In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014,

e) The Matter described in Uncertainty related to Going Concern section and Emphasis of Matter
above, in our opinion, may have an adverse impact on the functioning of the Company,

f} On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on March
31, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

gy With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure B,

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors' Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations which would impact its
financial position. {(Refer Note No - 35)
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ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any materiaf foreseeable losses as at March 31, 2024,

ii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company,

a. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or
entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the fntermediary shail, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the company (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the
like on behaif of the Uitimate Beneficiaries.

b. The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign
entittes (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shali, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities iderdified in any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) by or on behalf of
the Funding Party or provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢. Based cn such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub clause (a} and {b) contain any material misstatement.

V. No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the company.

vi,  Based on our examination which included test checks, the company has used accounting
software for maintaining books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit
logs) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for alt the relevant transaction
recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our Audit we did not come across
any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.

For 8. K. Patodia & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 112723W | W100962

Dhiraj Lalpuria

Partner Place: Mumbai
Membership Number: 146268 Date: May 18, 2024
UDIN: 24146268BKCSMW7679
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(i)

(i)

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing fult particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of property, plant & equipment,

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible Assets.

{b) As explained to us, the property, plant & equipment included in intangible assets, have been
physically verified by the Management according to phased programme designed o cover all
the items over the year which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard o the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets. According to information and explanations, no material
discrepancies have been noticed on such verification.

(c) As per the records examined by us, the Company does not have any immovable property.
Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(i)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(d) The company has not revalued its property, plant & equipment and intangible Assets.

(e} As per the records examined by us and explanation given to us, the company does not have
any proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any
Benami property under the “Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 {as amended in
2016) and Rules made thereunder. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(i)(e) of the Order
are net applicable to the Company.

{a) The Company does not hold any inventory. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(ii}(a) of the
said Order are not applicable to the Company.

(b} The Company has not been sanctioned working capitat limits in excess of Rs 5 crore, in
aggregate, at any points of time during the year, from banks or financial institutions on the
basis of security of current assets and hence reporting under clause 3{ii}(b) of the Order is not
applicable.

The Company has not granted any unsecured ioan, to the companies covered in the register
maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. The company alsc has not
granted any secured or unsecured (oans to firms, limited liability parinerships or other parties
covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act.

(a} The Company has not provided any ioans or advances in the nature of Ivans or stood
guarantee, or provided security to any other entity during the year, and hence reporting under
clause 3(iii)(a} of the Order is not applicable.

(b} The company has neither made any investments nor granted any loans, hence reporting under
clause 3(iii){b) is not applicable.

(c) The company has net granted any loans and therefore the schedule of repayment of principal
and payment of interest is not required, Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ii)(c) is not
applicable.

{d) As the company has not granted any ioans during the year, there is no overdue amount
remaining outstanding as at the balance sheet date,

(e} The company has not granted any loan during the year, Accordingly reporting under clause
3{iii}{e) is not applicable.

{f) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable
on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment during the year. Hence,
reporting under clause 3(ii}(f) is not applicable.
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{iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records, the Company has not given any loans, or provided any guarantee or security
as specified under Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Company has not
provided any guarantee or security as specified under Section 186 of the Companies Act,
2013.

{v) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits
from the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v} of the Order is not applicable.

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government of India
under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act. We have broadly reviewed the
books of account maintained by the company pursuant to the rules made by the Central
Government for the maintenance of cost records under sub-section(1) of section 148 the Act
and are of the opinion that prima facie, the specified accounts and records have been made
and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the records with a
view {o determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(vii) (@) According fo the information and expianations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion, the Company is generally reguiar in depositing
the undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-
tax, goods and services tax, duty of customs, cess and other material statutory dues, as
applicable, with the appropriate authorities except the dues for the period from January 2024
to March 2024 of Tax deducted at Source (TDS), Goods and Service Tax {GST) and
Professional Tax.

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Customs Duty,
Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2024 for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

{¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no dues of income tax, sales tax, goods & service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise or value added tax or cess which have not been deposited on
account of any dispute.

(viliy  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any
transactions, previcusly unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the fax
assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

{ix} (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the company has defauited in repayment of oans or other
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to the following lenders shown in the befow
table during the year.

Nature  of | Name of Lender | Amount Principal Maximum Number of

Borrowing unpaid on the | and Interest | days of delay or
due date ( Rs unpaid
in Million)

Rupee Canara Bank 259.51 Principal 117 Days

Term Loan and Interest

Rupee Union Bank of 37.79 Principal 117 Days

Term Loan | India and Interest

Rupee Orient Bank of 120.10 Principal 117 Days

Term Loan | Commerce and Interest

(OBC )
Rupee Siate Bank of 34.39 Principal 117 Days =




Annexure A to Auditors’ Report

Referred to in the Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of HK Toll Road Private
Limited on the Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

Page 3 of 4

Term Loan | india (SBI) and Inferest
Total 451.80

(b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financiat institutions or
government or any government authority.

{c) The Company has not taken any term loans during the current year however there are
outstanding term loan at the beginning of the year and the same were applied for the purpose
for which the loans were obtained.

(d) On an overail examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short-
term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-terms purposes by the
Company.

{e} On an overall examination of the financial s{atements of the Company, The Company has not
taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries.

{fy According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us,
we report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities
held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies as defined under the
Companies Act, 2013,

(x} (&) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company. the Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial
public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments). Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of
the Order is not applicable.

(&) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential afiotment or
private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.
Accordingly, clause 3{x){b) of the Order is not applicable.

(xi} (&) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according fo the
information and explanations given to us, considering the principles of materiatity outlined in
Standards on Auditing, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been
ncticed or reported during the course of the audit.

(b} No report under sub-section (12} of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by
the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies {Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government,

{¢) According to the information and explanations given to us, The Company has not received any
whistle blower complaint during the year.

(xif) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable

(xiiiy  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions
with refated parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013,
where applicable, and the detaiis of the related party transactions have been disclosed in the
standalone financial statements as required by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards.

{xiv) (a) Based on information and explanaticns provided to us and our audit procedures, in our
opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of
its business.
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{b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period
under audit.

{xv) In our opinion and according to the information and expianations given to us, the Company
has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected fo its
directors and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable
to the Company.

{(xvi) {(a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
india Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable,

(b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934, Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicabie.

(c} The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the reguiations made by
the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi}(c} of the Order is not applicable.

(d} According to the information and explanations provided fo us during the course of audit, the
Group does not have any CIC. Accordingly, the requirements of clause 3(xvi)(d) are not
applicable.

{xvi)  According to the information and explanations given to us, and the records of the company
examined by us, the Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the
immediately preceding financial year.

(xvii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly,
clause3(xviil) of the Order is not applicable.

(xix} ~ According to the information and explanations given to us by the management and the
records of the Company examined by us, on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and
expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities and other
information accompanying the financiat statements, there Is possible uncertainty as to the
company’s inability to meet its liabilities existing at the batance sheet date as and when they
fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

{(xx} ~ There are no unspent amounis towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on any
ongoing projects requiring a transfer to a fund specified in Schedule VIl to the Companies Act
in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Companies Act,
2013. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

For S. K. Patodia & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 112723W / W100962

Dhiraj Lalpuria

Partner Place : Mumbai
Membership Number: 146268 Date : May 16, 2024
UDIN : 24146268BKCSMWTE7S
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Referred to in paragraph 1(A) {(g) under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements” of our
report of even date to the members of HK Toll Road Private Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the aforesaid Standalone financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013

We were engaged to audit the internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial
statements of HK Toll Road Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”) as of March
31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2.

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to financial
statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financials Controls over Financial Reporting
(‘Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI). These
responsibilities inciude the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controis that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013
{hereinafter referred to as "the Act”).

Auditors’ Responsibility

3.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to financial statements based on our audit conducted in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting {the
‘Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing as specified under Section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl). Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with the ethicaf requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internat financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these financial statements was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adeqguacy of the internal
financial control system over financiat reporting with reference to these financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internai financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exist, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal controt based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risk of
material misstatement of the financial statement, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to the standalone financial statements of the Company.




Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Referred to in paragraph 1(A) (g) under the heading “Report on Other Legat and Regulatory Requirements” of our
report of even date to the members of HK Tolf Road Private Limited

Meaning of internal Financiai controls Over Financial Reporting with Reference to Financial
Statements

6.

A company's internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to financial statements
is @ process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that;

t. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
fransactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

ii. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

i. ~provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or dispositions of the company's assets that couid have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of internai Financial Controis Over Financial Reporting With Reference to
these Financial Statements

7.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financiat controis over financial reporting  with
reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financiat
control over financial reporting with reference to financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

Opinion

8.

In cur opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all materiai respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024,
based on the internal control over financial reporting with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal controf stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAL

For S. K. Patodia & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number; 112723W / W100962

Dhiraj Lalpuria

Partner Place: Mumbai
Membership Number: 146268 Date: May 16, 2024
UDIN: 24146268BKCSMWT7679




HK TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN : U45203MH2010PTC203370
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

RS Mittions
i As at As at
Particulars Nota March 31, 2024 March 3%, 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
{a) Intangible assets 4 156,863.70 16,399.44
(1) Deferred tax assets (neb 29 - 70178
Total Noa-Current Assets 15,863.70 17.101.20
Current assets
(a} Financial Assets
{iy Cash and cash equivalents Sa 43.76 431,76
(i} Olher financial asset 5b 132.86 15.41
{b) Current Tax Assets (Nety 12.33 48.04
{c) Other current assets [ 5.52 7.0z
Totai Current Asscts 19447 503.23
Total Assets 16,058.47 17.604.43
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUETY
{a) Equity share capital 7 3T 37.11
{b} Subordinated debt {in nature of Equity) 8a 3,622.60 3.022.60
(¢} Other equity 8 {4,507.63) {3.419.15)
Total Equity {1,447.92) {359.44)
LIABILITIES
Nen-current lizbilities
{a) Financial Liabitilies
(i) Borrowings a 2.526.34 391159
{iiy Qlher financial liabilities t1a 12,831.65 11,702 .99
(b)Y Provisions 12 .01 A08.70
Total Nor-Current Liabilities 15,358.00 16.023.28
Current liabilities
{a) Financiai Liabilities
{H} Borrowings i) 4,808.50 1,110.00
{ia} Trade payables - Micro ang Small Enterprises
{ib} Trade payables - Olher than \ticro and Small Enterprises 10 185.73 .72
(i) Other financial liabilities t1b 150.49 738.12
{b) Olher current kabilities 13 3.37 1.75
Total Current Liabitities 2,148,09 1,940.59
Total Equity and Liabilities 16,058.17 17,604.43

The accompanying summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory informtaion {noles) are an integral part of the Financial

Slatements.
As per our altached report of even dale.

For § K Patodia & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Neo. T12723WW1 00962

LnIra) Lalpuria
Partner
Membarship No. : 148268

Place: Mumbai
Oate: 16.05.2024

For and on behalf of the Board

Mahesh Gaikwad ailendra Jain
Director actor
DIN.08664942 06383281

Place: Mumibai
Date: 16.05,2024




Hi¥ TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN : U45203MH2010PTC 203370

Statement of Profit and Loss for year ended March 31, 2024

ﬁfl\ﬂillicms
. Year ended Year ended

Particulars Note March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Revenue from Operations 14 2,101.42 2.353.82
Other tncome 15 8.683 10,36
Tatal income 2,110.05 238318
Exponses

Toll Operation and Maintainence expenses 16 335.21 184.30

Employee benefits expense 17 18.4% 24.21

Finance costs 18 1,579.26 2,023.80

Depraciation and amortization expense 4 535.74 590.75

Olher expenses 19 26.00 39.94
Total expenses 2,494.62 2.883.10
Profit / {Loss) before tax {384.57) {499.92}
Tax expense

Current tax - -

Income Tax for earlier year 352 -

Deferred tax charge/{credit) 70176 15.08
Profit/{Loss) After Tax {1,089.85) {515.00)
Other Comprehensive income/ (Loss)
~ lterms that will not He rectassified

to profit or loss

Remeasuremants of net defined benefit plans 1.37 0.15
- Income tax relating to above - -
Qther Compreheasive lacome/ {Loss) 1.37 015
Total Comprehensive Income/ {Loss) {1,088.48) {514.85)
Earning! (loss} per equity share (Face Value per share * 10 each}

Easic & Diluted 25 (293.68) (138.78)

The accompanying summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory informtaion (notes) are an integral part of the Financial

Statemenls

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred 1o in our report of even date,

For § K Patodia & Associates ELP
Chanered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 112723WW 100962

Dhiraj Lalpuria
Partner
Membership MNo. : 146268

Place: Mumbati
Date: 16.05.2024

For and on beha¥f of the'Board

nanesn Gakwad sShgilendra Jain
Director Dlirgcior
DIN.06664942 LN 06383281

Place: Mumbal
Date; 16.05.2024




HK TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED

CiN : U45203MH2010FTE 203370
Cash flow Stalement for year ended Mar 31,2024

A CASH FLOW FROM QPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Profit f {Loss) efore tax
Adjusteents for:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses
{nterest income
inlerest expense

Cash Genoraled from Operations hefore

warking capital changes

Adiustments for:
(tncreaselfdecrease in financial assets excepl for pvestments
{Increase)decrease in olher current assets
increazef{decrease) in rade payables
increasef{decrease} in othar financial iahiliioc
Increasef{idecrease) in provisions
hcreasef{deciease] in other currerd Babitities

Cash gencrated from aperations
Taxes (paid) net of refunds

Net cash generated from operating activities - [A)

B CASH FLOW FROM iINVESTING ACYIVITIES:

FPurchase/sale proceeds of intangible assets {including capital creditors)

fierest received

Net cash (used in) f generated from investing activities - [B]

C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES;
Repayment of long term borrowings
Interes! paid

Nel cash used in financing activities - {C)

Net increasof{docrease) in cash and cash equivalents - [A+B+C]

Add: Cash and cash equlvalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the yoar

Components of Cash and cash oquivalents
Balances with banks - in Gurrent accounts

Deposits willt maturity of less (han three months
Cash an hand

Totat Cash and cash oquivalents (Refer Note 5a}

T Milliong

Yoear ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 37, 2023

{364.57) 149992}
535.74 590,75
{8.29} {10.36)
1,578.26 2,023,580
1,722.14 2.704.37
{2.64} 4.45
1.50 {0.04)
95.01 3B.96
35,67 2187
{479,78) {38.13)
1.62 {0.63)
{348.72) 25.48
1,373.42 2,125.85
32.18 {2.29)
1,406.81 2,127 .57
{550.47} (824.58}
9.38 10,18
{541.08} {814.40)
{673.20} (555,00}
{67833} (607.18}
{1,262.63) {1,162.18)
{386.00) 150.94
431.76 280.62
43.76 431.76
33.84 18567
2.92 73590
0.00 01%
43.76 521,76

Previous year figures have been regrouped/ reclassified! rearranged wherever necessary to make them comparable to those for the curcent year,

The balance in current account with banks of Rs.35.84 mition { Rs, 195 67 milian) lying in Escrow accounl with bank held as securily against borrowings.

As per our attached report of even dale.

For § K Patodia & Associates LLP
Chartered Aceounlanls
Firm Registralion No. 112723WAW100962

Dhiraj Laipuria
Partner
Membership Mo, © 146268

Place: Mumbai
Brate: $8.05.2024

For and on bnhalf of thie Board

maliveh Gaikwad
Director
DIN.06654542

Place: Mumbai
Dale; 16.05.2024

Shbifendra Jain

B303281




HK TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED

CiN : U45203MHZ10PTC 203370
Stalement of Changes in Equily

Note 8- Other Equity

A EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

¢ Millions
Balance at the Changes in equity | Batance at the end
Particulars beginning of the share capital of the year
year during the year
Farthe year ended March 31, 2023 37t - 3711
For the year ended March 31, 2024 v 37. 1
B. OTHER EQUITY T Millians
Equity Component Reserves and Surplus
. of compoud
Particulars financiat Securilies Premium | Retained £arnings Total
instruments
Halance al April (1, 202. 2.30 333.09 {3,239.69) {2,904.30)
Profit/ {Loss) for the year {515.00) {515.00)
Other comprehensive income/ (Loss) for the year
Remeasurement gains/ {loss) an defined benefit
plans 0.15 0.15
Totai comprehensive income for the Year - - (514.85) {514.85)
Bafance at March 31, 2023 2.30 333.09 (3.754.54) {3.,419.15}
Batance at Aprit 01, 2023 2.30 333.09 {3,754.54} (3,419,158}
Profil/ (L.oss) for the year (1,089.85) {1.089.85)
Other comprehensive income for the guarter
Remeaasuramant gainef {loce) on definsd bansfit
plans 1.37 1,37
Tatal comprehensive Income for the Year - - (1,088.48} {1,088.48)
Balance at Mar 31, 2024 2,30 332.09 (4,843.02} {4,507.63)

As per ow allached report of even dale.

For 5 K Patodia & Associates LLP
Chanered Accountanls
Firm Registration No. 1127 23WAN1 0098

Oniraj Lalpuria
Partner
tdembership Mo. | 146268

Place: Mumbal
Date: 16.05.2024

For and on bebalf of i€ Board) %

Mahesh Gaikwad
Director
DIN:0GGEE4942

Place: Mumbas
Date: 16.05.2024

Shaflendra Jain
Ditegtor
DIN06393281




HK Toll Road Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31,2024

Note 1: Corporate information

HK Toll Road Private Limifed (the "company”) was awarded on Build, Operate and Transfer (BOT) basis,
Design, Engineering, Construction, Operation and Maintenance for Six laning of Hosur - Krishnagiri
section of National Highway — 7 (km 33.130 {o km 83.000) in the state of Tamilnadu under the Concession
Agreement dated July 2nd, 2010 with National Highways Authority of India. The Concession Agreement is
for a period of 24 years from appointed dale as defined in clause 15.1,1. The Company is a wholly owned
subsidiary of Reliance infrastructure Ltd, a public company registered as per section 3 of the Companies
Act, 1956, During the year, The Company has started Tolt collection w.e.f. 07" June 2011

The financial slatements were authorized for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on May 16, 2024
Pursuant to the provisions of section 130 of the Act the Central Government, income tax authorities and
other statutory regulatory body and section 131 of the Act the board of directors of the Company have
powers fo amend / re-open the financial statements approved by the board / adopted by the members of
the Company.

The Company is a private limited company incorparated and domiciled in india. The registered office of the
Company is located at at Reliance Center,19, Walchanda Hirachand Marg, Baliard Estale, Mumbai —
400001.

Note 2: Basis of preparation

These Financial Statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (ind AS)
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Acl, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act. These Financial Statements have been
prepared in accordance with the requirements of the information and disclosures mandated by Schedule
Il of the Act, applicable tnd AS, other applicable pronouncements and ragulations.

These Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain assets and
liabilittes which have been measured at fair value,

These Financial Statements are presented in ¥ Millions, except where otherwise indicated.
The financiat statements have been prepared in aceordance with the requirements of the information and

disclosures mandated by Schedule lil to the Act, applicable Ind AS, other applicable pronouncements and
reguiations.

Note 3: Summary of material accounting policies

3.1

Current versus non-gurrent classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

= Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

*  Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

* Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used {o setlle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period

All other assels are classified as non-current,
A liabifity is current when:
= ltis expecied to be settied in normat operating cycle
*  ltis due {0 be settied within twelve months after the reporting period, or
*  There is no unconditional right to defer the setilement of the liabllity for at least twelve months after
the reporiing period
Al vther fabililies are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assels and habilities,

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in
cash and cash equivalents. The Company has ideniified twelve months as its eperating cycle,




HK Toll Read Private Limited
Notes to Financial Sfatements as of and for the year ended March 31,2024

3.2 Functional and presentation currency
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ftems included in the financial statements of the company are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates ( 'the functional currency'). The functional slatements
are presenled in Indian Rupees (1), which the company’s functional and presentation currency.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction belween market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumpflion that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either;

= Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
= inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market paricipants act in their economic best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes inte account a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available fo measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing
the use of unobservable inputs.

All assels and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Financial Statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant fo the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 -Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input thal is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabililies that are recognised in the Financial Statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occuired between fevels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole)
at the end of each reporling period.

The Company's Management determines ihe policies and procedures for hoth recurring and non -
recurring fair value measurement, such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured
at fair value.

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and iiabifities
which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting policies. For this
analysis, the Management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the
information in the valuation computation fo contracts and other relevant documents.

The management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with refevant
externat sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and Habilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy as explained ahove.

This nole summarizes accounling policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the
relevant notes.

Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions of Financial instruments
including those carried at amortised cost (notg 2Q).and Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement
hierarchy {note 21).
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3.5

Revenue recognition

Ind AS 115 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers” provides a control- based revenue recognition
model and provides a five step application approach to be followed for revenue recognition.

= Identily the contraci{s) with a customer;

+ ldentily the performance obligalions;

« Determine the transaction price;

= Allocate the transaclion price to the performance obligations;

= Recognize revenue when or as an enlity satisfies performance obligations

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services are
transferred to the customer, at an amount that reflects the consideration {o which the Company expects to
be enfitled in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue is recognized when no significant
uncerainty exists as to its realization or collection.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. The Company
recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable that fulure
economic benefils will flow to the entity; and when specific criterla have been met for the Company's
aclivities, as described below.

Toll revenue

The income from toll revenue from operations of the facility is accounted on accrual basis.

Others
Insurance and other claims are recognized as revenue on certainty of receipt basis.

income on investment is recognized hased on the lerms of the investment. Income from mutual fund
scheme having fixed maturily plans is accounted on declaration of dividend or on maturity of such
investments. Interest income s recognised on a time proporiion basis taking Into account the amoun!
outstanding and the rates applicable. For all other financial assets measured at amortised cost inlerest
income is recorded using the Effective interest Rate (EIR).

Accounting of intangible assets under service concession arrangement

The Company has Toll Read Concession fights where it Builds, Operates and Transfers {BOT)
infrastructure used to provide public service for a specified period of time. These arrangements may
include Infrastructure used in a public-to-private service concession arrangement for its entire useful life.

These arrangements are accounted for based on the nature of the consideration. The intangible asset
modei is used to the extent that the Company receives a right (a license) to charge users of the public
service. The finandial assel model is used when the Company has an unconditional contractual right fo
receive cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor for the construction services.
When the unconditional right to receive cash covers only parl of the service, the two models are combined
fo account separately for each component. if the Company performs more than one sewvice {i.e.,
construction or upgrade services and operalion services) under a single contract or arrangement,
consideration received or receivable is allocated by reference to the relative fair vaiues of the services
delivered, when the amounts are separately identifiable.

The intangible assets is measured at the fair value of consideration transferred to acquire asset, which is
the fair value of consideration received or receivable for the construction services delivered.

Intangible assets model

Intangible assets arising out of service concession arrangements are accounted for as intangible assets
where the Company has a contractual right to charge users of service when the projects are completed.
Apart from above per the service concession agreement the Company is obligaled to pay the amount of
premium to National Highways Authority of India (NHAI). This premium obligation if any is freated as
Intangible asset as it is paid towards getting the right {o earn revenue by constructing and operating the
roads during the concession period.

Hence, the total premium payable to the Grantor as per the Service Concession Agreement is also
recognized as an ‘intangible Assets’ and the corresponding obligation for commilted premium is recognized
as premium obligation. R
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The intangible assefs is measured at the fair value of consideration fransferred o acquire asset, which is
the fair value of consideration received or receivable for the construction services delivered,

Amortization of concession intangible assets

The Intangible asset recoghized are amortised over the concession period on the basis of projected toll
revenue which reflects the patlern in which the assets economic benefits are consumed. The projected
total toll revenue is based on the independent traffic volume projections; Amortization is revised in case of
any material change in the expected pattern of economic benefits. Refer note 22 for description and
significant terms of the concession agreements,

Maintenance obligations

Contractual obligations to maintain, replace or restore the infrastruciure {principally resurfacing costs and
major repairs and unscheduled maintenance which are required to maintain the Infrastructure asset in
operational condition except for any enhancement element) are recognized and measured at the best
estimate of the expenditure required to setile the present obligation at the balance sheet date for which
next resurfacing would be required as per the concession arrangement. The provision is discounted to its
present value at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of maney and the
risks specific to the Hability.

Taxes
Current Tax

Current income fax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the laxation authorities. The tax rates and tax faws used lo compule the amount are those that are
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporling date in the countries where the Company operates and
generates taxable income. Current income tax relating to items recognized outside the Statement of Profit
and Loss is recognized outside the Statement of Profit and Loss (either in other comprehensive income or
in equity). Current tax items are recognized in correfation to the underlying transaction sither in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax
returng with respect fo silualions in which applicabie tax regulations are subject to imerpretation and
establishes provisions where appropriate.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT') under the provisions of income-tax Act, 1961 is recognised as current tax
in the statement of profit and foss. MAT paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic
benefits in the form of adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is
convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognized as an asset in
the balance shee{ when it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the
Company.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the Company:

a)has a legaily enforceabie right to set off the recognised amounts; and
b) Intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and setile the liabifity simuitaneousty.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences belween the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting
date.

Deferred tax fiabilities and assets are recognized for all taxable femporary differences

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses 1o the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be avaitable against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax
losses can be utilized,

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporiing date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utiized, Unrecognized deferred tax assetls are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that fulure taxabie profits will allow the.deferred tax
asset to be recovered.




HK Toll Road Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31,2024

3.7

38

39

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realized or the liability is setfled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacled at the reporting date,

Deferred tax refating to items recognized outside the Stalement of Profit and Loss is recognized outside
the Statement of Profit and Loss (either in olher comprehensive income of in equity). Deferred fax items
are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly
in equily.

Beferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
the same faxation authority.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly atiributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur,
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an enfity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences te the extent regarded as an adjusiment {o the
borrowing costs.

Leases

Operating lease payments are recognized as an operaling expense in the income statement on a straight
iine basis over the lease term.

Contingent liabilities and contingent Assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligalion that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmad
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain fulure events beyond the controt of the
Company or a present obligation thal is not recognised because # is not probable that an outflow of
resources with be required to setile the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremsly rare cases
where there is a fiability thal cannol be recognised because it cannot be measured refiably. The contingent
liability is not recognised in the books of accounts but its existence is disclosed in the Financial
Stalements. A Conlingent assel is nol recognized in financial statemenis, however, the same are disclosed
where an inflow of economic benefit is probable.

3.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable, An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the
asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash infiows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of
each reporting period.

3.11 Provislons

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation {legat or constructive) as a result of
a past event, if is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required fo
setile the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligalion. YWhen the
Company expects some or ail of a provision to be reimbursed the reimbursement is recognized as a
separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is
presented in the Slatement of Profit and Loss net of any reimbursement.

if the effect of the lime value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the Hiability. When discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due {o the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.
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3.12 Employee benefits
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{i} Short term obligations

Liabflities for wages and salaries, including non-monelary benefits that are expecled to be setiled whoily
within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are
recognized in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at
the amounts expected to be paid when ihe liabilities are settied. The lizbilities are presenfed as current
employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

(it} Leave obligations
The Company provides sick leave and privilege leave to its employees.

Privilege and sick leave obligation is provided based on actuarial valuation which takes into account
the estimated portion of Jeave that will be en-cashed, availed and the portion that will lapse. The
portion that is expected to be en-cashed is provided for based on the basic salary of the employen
and for the pottion that is expecied {o be availed, the valuations are based on the employees' lotal
compensation. The liabilily for earned leave is also classified as current where it s expected to be
availed/ en-cashed during the next 12 months. The remaining portion is classified as non-current. The
amounts of current and non-current liability are based on actuarial estimates,

{iti) Post - employment obligations

The Company operates various post-empioyment schemes, including
{2) defined benefit plans such as gratuity
(b} defined conlribidion plans such as provident fund.

Gratuity Obligations

The liabilily or asset recognized in the balance sheel in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is
the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries
using the projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future
cash outflows by reference to market yieids at the end of the reporting period on government bonds
that have terms approximating to the terms of the refated obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense
in the statement of profil and loss.

Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumplions are recognized in the pericd in which they occur, direclly in other comprehensive
income. They are included in retained earnings in the Statement of Changes in Equity and in the
batance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined henefit obligation resuiting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognized immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

o
Defined Contribution plans

The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local
regulations. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the coniributions are
recognized as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognized
as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalenis in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and shor-term

deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.
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For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short
term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafls as they are considered an integral
part of the Company’s cash management.

314 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial
{iabilily or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value, in the case of financial assets nol recorded at fair
value through Statement of Profit and Loss, net of directly atiributable transaction cost to the acquisition
of the financial assef. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (reguar way trades) are recognised
on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commiis 1o purchase or sell the asset.

For purposes of subsegueni measurement, financial assets are classified in following categoeries;
*  af amortised cosl

= ai fair value through profit or foss (FVTPL)

»  at fair value through olher comprehensive income (FYTOCH

Financial Assets at amortised cost
Financial assets are measured al the amoriised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within & business model whose obijective is to hold assets for collecting contractual
cash flows, and

b} Contractual lerms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principat and interest (SPPI} on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. All the Loans and other receivables under financiat
assets (except investments) are non-derivalive financial assels wilh fixed or determinable payments thal
are not quoted in an active market.

After initial measurement such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
Effective Interest Rate (EiR) method. Amorlised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amonrization is
included in finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This category generally applies o loans and other
receivables,

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Statement of Profit and Loss/Other Comprehensgive
ncome

All investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value, The Company has invesiment in
mutual funds which are held for trading, are classified as at FVTPL. The Company makes such election
an an instrument by instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an instrument as at FVTOCI, then alt fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income, There is no
recycling of the amounts from Other Comprahensive Income (OCI) to the Statement of Profit and Loss,
even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or {oss within
equity. Instrumenis included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the Statement of Profi and Loss.

Deg-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial assel or parl of the Company's similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognized {i.2. removed from the Company's balance sheet) when:

The rights to receive cash flows from the assel have expired, or

The Company has transferred its rigm%ﬁ'l"ﬁ:_am cash flows from the assef or hag assumga any =y
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obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-
through' arrangement; and either (a} the Cempany has transferred substantially al! the risks and rewards
of the asset, or {b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantialy all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred contro! of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights 1o receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership. When it has nefther transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognize the transferred asset to
the extent of the Company's continuing involvement. In thal case, the Company also recognizes an
associated liabilily. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credif losses associated with its asseis
carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has
heen a significant increase in credit risk.

The Company has three types of financiat assets subject te Ind AS 109's expected credit loss model:
= |oans receivables measured at amorised cost

= Retentions receivable from NHAI
= Loans given {o employees

The impairment methodology for each class of financial assets stated above is as foliows:

Loans receivables measured at amorlised cost: Loans receivables at amorlised cost are generally short
lerm in nature considered to be low risk, and thus the impairment provision is determined as 12 months
expected credit losses.

Loans given to employees: For loans given to employees outstanding as on the reporting dates, the has
determined reliably that assessing the probability of default at the initial recognition of each and every loan
of receivable would result in undue cost and effort. As permitted by Ind AS 109, the credit provision will be
determined based on whether credit risk is low only at each reporting date, untd the loan is derecognized.
Using the impairment methodology the Company has assessed that no lean foss allowance neeads to be
recarded in the books of accounts.

Expected credit loss (ECLY) impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is
recognized as income/ expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss (P&L). This amount is reflecled under
the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is
described below:

Financial assets measured as at amortized cost and other contractual revenue receivables - ECL is
presented as an aflowance, i.e., as an intearal part of the measurement of those assets in the balence
sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the
Company does nol reduce impairment aliowance from the gross carrying amount.

Financial LiabHities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabifities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through Statement
of Profit and Loss, loans and horrowings, trade payables or other payables.

All financia! liabilities are recognized initially at fair value.

The Company's financial liabilities include {rade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafls and other payables,

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities at amortized cost: After initial measurement, such financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is calcutated by

i o

taking into account any discount or p%mgisitio:1 and fees or costs that are an integral-part-of

the EIR. The E{R amortization is inclu zO%ls in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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3.16

{i

—_

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. However, the Company
has borrowings at floating rates. The impacl of restatement of effective interest rate, year on year due to
reset of interest rate, is not material. Gains and losses are recognized in Slatement of Profit and Loss
when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the transaction cost amortization process.

Trade Payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business frem suppliers. Accounis payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year of less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as
non-current liabiiities.

Trade payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective inlerest method.

Retention money payable

This is the category most refevant o the Company. Retention moneys are measured at Fair value initiafly.
Subseguently, they are measured al amortised cost using the EIR (Effective interest rate) method. Gains
and losses are recognized in Siatement of Profil and Loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as
through the EIR amortizalion process,

De-recagnition

A financial liability #s derecognized when the obligation under the iiability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new ability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Stalement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a nef basis, in realiza thn assats and settle the lahilities simultaneously,

Segment information

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker (CODM). Chief operating decision maker's function is to allocate the resources
of the enlity and access the performance of the operating segment of the entity.

The Board assesses the financial performance and position of the Company and makes strategic
decisions. Itis identified as being the chief operating decision maker for the company.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the entity and that are
believed to be reasonable under the circurmstances.

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the refated actual resulis. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of cansing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities are
disclosed below.

Applicabitity of service concession arrangement accounting to toll roads concessionaire
arrangements

The Company has determined that Appendix C of Ind AS 115 "Service concession arrangements' is
applicable to the Company which pmﬂﬂmié@gounting by the operators for public-to-private. service
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concession arrangements. The Company has entered into concession arrangement with NHAI as per
which the Company would participate in the Design, Build, Finance, Operate and Transfer (DBFOT) basis
the toll roads infrastructure. After the end of the concession arrangement, the Company has to transfer the
infrastructure i.e. toli roads constructed to National Highway Authorities of India (NHAI.

Accordingly the Company has recognized the intangible assets recognized as per the accounting policy
mentioned in Note no 3.5 ‘Accounting of intangible assets under service concessionaire arrangement'.

(i} Income taxes

The Company has recognized deferred tax assets relating to carried forward tax losses to the extent there
are sufficient {axable temporary differences relating to the same taxalion authority against which the
unused tax fosses can be utilized. However, the utilization of tax losses aiso depends on the ability of the
Company to satisfy certain tests at the time the losses are recouped. Management has forecasted future
taxable profits and has therefore recognized deferred tax assets in relation to tax losses.

{(iii} Amortization of concession intangible assets

The Intangible asset recognized are amortised over the concession period on the basis of projected toll
revenue which reflects the pattern in which the assets economic benefis are consumed. The projecied
total 1oll revenue is based on the independent traffic volume projections; Amortization is revised in case
of any material change in the expecled pattern of ecanomic benefits.

{iv}Provision for resurfacing obligation (major maintenance expenditure)

317

The Company records the resurfacing obligation for its present obligation as per the concession
arrangement fo maintain the toll roads at every five years during the concession period. The provision is
included in the Financial Siatemenis al the present value of the expected fulure payments, The
calculations to discount these amounts to their present value are based on the estimated timing of
expenditure occurring on the roads.

The discount rate used to value the resurfacing provision at its present value is determined through
reference 1o the nature of provision and risk associated with the expenditure.

Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Carporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to lime. For the year ended
March 31, 2024, MCA has not nofified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards
applicable to the Company.
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Note 4 - Intangible assets (including intangibie assets under development) T Millions

Particulars intangible Assets Intangible assets
Toli Collection Right  |NHAI Premium under development

Year ended March 2023
Opening gross carrying amount 11,439.58 8.254.10 .
Additions - - -
Capitalised! Adjusted/Disposal - - -
Closing gross carrying amount 11,438.58 8,254.10 -
Accumulated amortization and impairment
Opening accumulated amortization and impairmaent 1,445.71 125777 -
Amortization charge for the year 347.63 243.13 -
Caplitalised! Adjusted/Disposal -
Closing accumulated amortization and impairment 1,793.34 1,500.80 -
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2023 9,646.24 6,753.20 -
Year ended Mar 31, 2024
Opeaning gross carrying amount 11,438.58 8,254 10 -
Additions - - -
Capitalised! Adjusted/Disposal - - -
Closing gross catrying amount b 11,439,581 826410 | -
Accumulated amoertization and impairment
Opening accumulated amortization and impairment 1,793.34 1,500.90 -
Amaortization charge for the Year ended 314.99 220.75
Capitatised
Closing accumulated amortization and impairment 2,108.33 1,721.65 -
Net carrving amount as at March 31, 2024 9,331.25 6,532.45 -
Note:
1) Intangibie Assest pledged as security with lenders.
2) Fiat ar Boisar in Maharashtra of Rs 1.63 Million is included in gross block of intangible Assets,
3} All the title deeds of Immovable property are held in the name of the company
4) No proceedings has been initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property
under the Benami Transactions {Prohibition} Act, 1988. Therefore the disclosure of details of Benami
Properly held is not applicable,
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Note 5 - Financial Assets - Current

2 Millions

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

As al
March 31, 2023

Note § {a} - Cash and Cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
- in Escrow/current accounts

Deposits wilh malturity of less than three months
Cash on hand

Note 5 (b) - Other financiat assets - current

Granl receivable from NHA!
Securily deposits

interest accrued on fixed deposits
Others Receivable

Claims Receivable From NHAI

Note 6 - Other current assets

Advance 1o vendors
Advance 1o employees
Prapaid Expenses

Duties and taxes receivable
Gratuity Advance

33.84 193.67
9.92 23590
0.00 0.19
43.76 431.76
2.92 2.92
0.02 112
7.79 12.07
122.13 0.30
132.86 16.41
- 077

- 0.08

- 0.92
3.26 4.10
2,26 1.13
5.52 7.02
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Note 7 - Share Capital and Other equity

Note 7a - Authorised Share Capital

2 Millions

Particulars

Nos of Shares

As at
March 31, 2024

As af
March 31, 2023

At lhe beginning of lhe year
Add : Increase during the year

Al the end of the year

Mote 7h - Issued, subscribed and paid-up equity
share capital

Al the beginning of the year
Add : Shares issued during the year

At the end of the year

Note ¢ - Terms and rights attached to equity shares

50,00,000
of V10 each

37,141,000
of 10 each

50.00 50.00
50,00 50.00
37.11 371
37.11 37.11

The Company has only one class of shares referred to as Equity Shares having a Par Value of Rs.10/-. Each holder of the share is

entitled to one vote per share in the event of liguidation.

Note 7d - Reconcitiation of nos of Shares

Nos of Shares at the beginning of the year 37,114,000 37,111,000
Add : Nos of Shares issued duwring the year -
Nos of Shares al the end of the year 37,41,000 37,411,000
Note 7¢ - Shares hetd by holding Company
ot their subsidiariesfassociates
Reliance Infrastructure Limited
{Holding Company) 37,11,000 37,11,000
Note 7f - Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
% of holding 100% 100%
The Holding Company has pledged 11,13,300 Equity Shares of the Company for availing various term loans.
Note 7g - Na of Shares Pledged/safekeep & unpledged by the Promotars : -
Particul As at 31st As at 31st March
artlcutars March 2024 2023
Plegged Shares 1113300 1113300
Safckeep 705080 705090
Unpledged 1892610 1892610
Total 3711000 3711000
Note 8a - Sub-ordinated debt {in nature of equity)
At the beginning of the year 3,022.60 302260
Increase ! {decrease} during the year - -
At the end of the year 3,022.60 3.022.80

Terms and rights attached to Sub-ordinated debts infused by Holding Company aiongwith its Subsidiaries

i} Subordinated debt is the part of Holding Companys Equity from the promoters of the Companys for the project, which is
unsecured and interest free as per Common Loan Agreement wilh the lenders;

it} No repayment/redemplionfinterest servicing allowed during the moratarium period of the long term project loan.

Note Bb - Corporate Guarantee {in nature of equity)

At the beginning of the year
increase / {decrease) during the year
At the end of the year

2,30

2.30

2.30

2.30
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¥ Millions

As af
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Note 8¢ - Retained Earnings

At the beginning of the year (3,754 .54) {3,233.6%)
Net Profit/(L.oss) for the year (1,089.85) (515.00)
Items of other comprehensive income recognised directly in
retained earnings

- Remeasuremens of post-employements obligations 1.37 0.15

(et of tax)

At the end of the Year - _14,843.02) (3,754.54)
Note 8d - Securities Premium Account
At the beginning of the year 333.09 333.08
Premium on shares issued during the year - -
At the end of the Year 333.09 333.09

Nature and purpose of securities premium

Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium cn issue of shares. The reserve is utilised in accordance

with the provisions of the act.
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Financiaf Liabitities

Note ¢ {a) Borrowings - Non current

Particulars

From banks
- Rupee term loan

Total

TTTAs at

March 31, 2024

2,526.34

2,526.34

T Millions

As at
March 31, 2023

3.911.59

3911.58

Secured by:
aj First morlgage and charge of alt immovable properties, present and fulure, save and except the project Assels.

b) First charge by way of hypothecalion of all movable assels, both present and fulure, save and except the project Assels.

¢) First charge on all intangible assels save and except Project assels.
d) First Charge on receivables, book debts, cash and cash equivalents including any other bark accounts and other assets, present and fufure,

&) First Charge on government approvals, insurance policies, uncalled capital, project documents, guaranlees, letier of credil, performance
warranlies, indemnilies and securities given o the Company,
1} in view of the delay in repayment of the borrowings, the lenders have classified the account as Non Performing Assel,

Repayment Terms for Term foans -

Maturity Profite of Secured Term Loan (Principal undiscounted) are as under ; T Millions
Financial Year Amount

2023-24 976.00
2024-28 1387.50
2025-26 1665.00
2026-27 306.34
Yotal 4334.84
Note 8 (b) - Borrowings - Current

As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Current Malurities of long term debt 1,808.50 1,110.00
1,808.50 1,11¢.00
Note 40 - Trade Payables
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Trade Payables - Other than Micro & Smail Enlerprise 185.73 90.72
Trade Payables to related paries - -
1846.73 a0.72

{a) Dues to Micro and Smali Enterprises

Disclosure of payable 1o vendors as defined under the "Micro, Smalt and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2008" is based on the information
available with the Company regarding the status of regisiration of such venders under the said Act, as per the intimalion received from them on
requests made by the company. There are no overdue principal amounts/interest payable amounis for delayed payments to such vendors at the
Balance Sheet date. There are no delays in paymenl made to such suppliers during the year or for any earlier years and accordingly there is no
interest paid or outstanding inlerest in this regard in respect of payments made during the year or brought forward from previous years.

Trade Fayahies ageing schedule

Qutsanding for following pericds from daie of payment

Less than More than
Particulars 1 Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years 3 Years Total
1) MSME - - - -
2} Others -CY i47.22 1.24 2.60 34.67 185.73
2} Others - Las! Year 46.85 9.02 0.95 33.80 90.72
3} Disputed Dues - MSME - - - - -
4} Disputed Dues - Others . - - z W
Total ST TEE 147,22 1.24 2.60 34.67 18573 -
Previous Year { FY 23} 46.85 9.02 0.95 33.80 90.72 ;{f’_“__- -




Note 41 {a) - Other financial liabitities - Non - current
. As at As al
Particutars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
NiAL Premium Payabie 12,831.65 11,702.99
Total 12,831.65 11,702.98
Note 11 () - Other financial tiabilifios - current T Millions
) Asat As al
Particutars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
NHAI Premium Payabie - 643.10
Inlerest due bul nol paid 30.80 10.89
Credilors for Capilal expenditure 3410 34.10
Employee benfils payable - 7.50
Relention Money Payable 8560 42.53
Total 150,49 738.12
Retention Money Payable ageing schedule
E Quisanding for following periods from dale of paymenl
Less than 1 More than
Farticulars Year 12 Yeacs 2-3 Years |3 Years Tolal
Retention Money Payahle CY [ FY 24) 50,86 15,79 £.61 10,33 8560
Total 50.86 15.79 8.61 10.33 85.60
Previous Year (FY 23) 24.52 $.15 0.54 8.32 42.53
Note 12 Provisions - Non - Current
Provision Tor employze benefils
- Gratuily - _
- Leave encashmen! 0.0% 0.01
Clhers
- Resurfacing expenses 0.00 408.69
0.01 408.70
Movement in Provisions
Resurfacing provisions
At the beginning of the year 408.6% 392,51
Charged f (credited} lo profit or loss
Provision made during the year 146.14 BG 25
unwingding of discount 72.45 55.45
MMR Expenses incunred dwing the year {627.28) {125.53)
At the end of the Quarter 0.00 408.69

Resurfacing provisions - significant estimates

As per the service concession arrangement wilh NHAI the Company is obligated lo carfy out resurfacing of the roads under concession. The
Company accrues the provision required towards resurfacing cost in stalement of profil & loss in accordance with Ind AS 37 ' Provisions,
Conlingenl Liabilities and Contingent Assels. Refer Note no. 3.5 maintenance obligations. These provisions are made based on the best estimate
of the management which are reviewed periodically and necessary effect for the changes, if any, are laken in the financials on prospective basis.

Note 13 - Other current liabilities

Duties and taxes payable 3.37 1.75
3.37 1.75
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T Millions

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Note 14 - Revenue

Operating income
Income from 1ol colections
Other Operating income

Note 15 - Other income

Interest income

- On fixed deposits

- Others

insurance claim received
Miscellaneous income

Note 46 - Toli Gperation and Maintainence expenses

Subcontracling expenses
WMainlzinence of Roads
Electricily expenzes

Handling Charges

Sile and other direcl expenses

Note 17 - Employee henefits expenses
Salaries wages and bonus

Confribulion to provident funds and other funds

Graluily
Leave encashment
Stafl welfare expenses

Note 18 - Finance Costs

Interesl on tean

Interest unwinding on premium deferment
Unwinding of discount on provisions
Other finance charges

Unwinding of discount on retention money

Note 19 - Other expenses

Insurance

Legal and Professional Charges
Audilors Remuneration
Travelling and Conveyance
Other miscefaneous expenses

2,00542 2,347.22
6,00 5.60
2,101.42 2,352.82
593 9.38
2.36 0.3

- 0.25
0.34 0.00
8.63 10.36
31.98 41.37
291.54 132.99
7.83 .49
0.03 0.27
3.82 0.18
335.21 184.30
96.58 22.14
1.38 1.34
0.25 032

. 0.09
0.20 0.32
18.41 24.21
476.77 618.81
872.35 1,150.76
72.45 55.45
163.68 167.61
- 31.27
1,579.26 2,023.90
40.35 12.62
41.55 20.97
0.24 0.18
1.91 2.76
1.94 3.41
26.00 39.94
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Note 20 - Fair value measurements

Signficance of financial instruments

Classification of financial instruments

¥ Millions

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

As al
March 31, 2023

Financial assets

At amortised Cost

interest accrued on fixed deposits

Insurance Claim receivables
Cash and Cash equivalent

Claims Receivable From NHAI

Security Deposit

Totat financial assets

Financiat liabilities

At amortised Cost
Fioating Rate Borrowings
Trade Payables
Retention money payable
NHA! Premlum Payable
Interest accrued but not due
Employee Benefils Payable

Creditors for capital expenditure

Total financial liabilities

0.02 1.12
.78 12.07

43.76 431.76
122.13 0.30

292 2.92

............. T 451.09
4334.84 5021.88
185.73 90.72
85.60 42.53
1283165 12346.09
30.80 10.89

) 7.50

34.40 3410
17502.74 17553.42




HK TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for year ended March 31, 2024

MNoie 21 - Fair value Higrarchy

T Millions
Particulars As at As al
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2022
{a} Fair value hierarchy - Assets and Habilitics which are measured at amortised cost for which fair
values are disciosed
Financial liabilities
Levet 3
Floating Rale Borrowings 4,334.84 502159
Retention monsy payable 85.60 42.53
NHA! Premium Payable 12,831.65 12,348.09
Total financial liabilities 17,252.09 1741022
Recognised fair value measurements
Levet 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financial inslrumenls measured using quoted prices. This includes mutual funds that
have guoted price. The mutual funds are valued using the closing NAV,
Levesl 2: The fair value of financial instrements that are nol traded in an active market {for example, over-the-counter
deiivalives) is delermined usirg valuation echinigues whicht raximise e use of abservable market data and rely
as liftie as possible on enlily-specific eslimates. H all signilicant inputs required to fair value an instiument are
ohservable, the instriement is included in fevel 2.
Lavel 3. if ane ar more of lhe significant inpuls is not based on observable market dala, the instrument is included in level 3.
This is lhe case for borrowings, debentures, Rerention money payable and hedging derivative inctuded in level 3
Valuation technique used to determine fair vatue
Specific vatuation technigues used to value financial instruments include:
+ the use of quoled market prices or dealer quotes for simitar instrumerts
+ the fair vaiue of forward foreign exchange conlracts and principal swap is determined using forward exchange rates at
the batance sheet date
- the fair value of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounled cash flow anatysis.
(b} Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost 7 Millions
As at As al
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Financial liabilities
Carrying value of financial liabilitias at amortised cost
Floating rate borrowigns 4,334.84 5021.5%
Retention money 85.60 42.53
NHAI Premium Payable 12,831.65 12,346.09
17,252.0% 17.410.22
Fair value of financial liabilities carrled at amortised cost
Flaating rate borrowigns 4,334.84 5.021.58
Retention money 85.60 42,53
NHAI Premium Payable 12,831.65 12,346.09
17,252.09 17,410,422

The camying value amounls of fixed deposits, interesl accrued on depoists, retention money receivable, insurance claim receivable, cash and cash
equivalents, trade payables, interest accrued, employee benefits poyable and credilors for capital expenditure approximate theic fair value due (o their short
tarm nature. For financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair vatue, the carmying amounts are equal to the fair values,
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HK TOLL RCAD PRIVATE LIMITED
Neotes to the Financiai Statements for year ended March 31, 2024

Nofe 23 - Financizal risk management
The Company aclivities exposes il lo market risk, liquidity risk and credi risk.
Tiis note explains the source of risk which the entily is exposed o and how e entily is manage {he risk.

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management
Credit risk Cash and cash equivalents, Aging analysis Credit Enversification of bank
trade receivables, financia ratings deposits, credil imits and
assets measufed at amaortised letters of credit
cost.
Iarket risk - interest rate Long-term borrowings al Sensitivity analysis Actively Managed
variable
Ligjuidily risk Borrowings and other labilities Ralling cash flow forecasts Avaitability of commitled
credil lines and borrawing
tacilities

The Company’s risk management is carried out by a project finance leam and central treasury leam (group treasury) under policies approved by
board of direclors. Group treasury idenlifies, evaluates and hedges financial risk in close co-operalion with the group's operaling units. The
Managemen of the Company provides writlen principles for averall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as interest

rale risk and credit risk, use of derivative financial msirument and non-derivative financial instrument, and investments of excess liquidily,

Commaodity risk:
The Company requires for implementation {construclion, eperation and maintenance) of the projects, such as cement, bitumen, steel and other

construction materials. For which, the Company enlered inlo lixed price contract wilh the EFC conlractor and Q&M Conlractor so a5 to manage
Our exposure (o price increases inaw aletials, Hence, the sensilivity analysls ks not required

Market risk — intorest rate risk

The Bank loans loflows ficating rales with resets defined under agreements. While interest rale fluctuations carey a risk on financials, the Company
earn toll income which is linkad (o W thus providing a natural hedge (o the inferes! rale risk.

a) |nterest rate risk exposure ¢ Miltions
As at Asal
rticul
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2022
Variabfe Rate Borrowings 4,334.84 5,021.59
Total 4,334.84 5,021.59

B} Sensitivity analysis
Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower inlerest expenses from borrowings as a rasull of changes in inlerest rates.
Impact on profitiioss after tax

Interest rales {increase) by 100 basis points (32.08) (37.16)
Interest rales decrease by 100 basis points 32.08 3716




HK TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for year ended March 31, 2024

Liquidity risk - Table

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meel its present and fulure cash and collateral chligations without
incurring unacceplable losses. The Company objective is {o, at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet ils cash and
coliaterat requirements. The Company closely moniters its liquidity position and deploys a robust cash management system. It
maintains adequate sources of financing including debt from banks at an oplimized cost. The liguidity risk is managed on the basis
of expected maturity dates of the financial liabilities. The average credit period taken to settle rade payables is about 30 to 60 days.
The carrying amounts are assumed to be a reasonable approximation of fair value. The following table analyses financial liabilities

by remaining contractual maturities.

The table below analyses the group's non-derivative financial liabililies and net-settled derivative financial liabilities into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual malurity date. Derivalive financial
liabilities are included in the analysis if their contractual maturities are essential for an understanding of the timing of the cash flows.

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.

2 Millions
As at March 31, 2024 Upto 1 year More than 1 year Total
Non-derivatives
Borrowings 1,808.50 2,526 .34 4,334.84
Trade and other payables 18573 - 185.73
Other financial liabiities Non current 12,831.65 12,831.65
Other financial liabilities Current 150.49 - 150.49
Total non-derivatives 2144.72 15,357.99 17,502.11
Ag at March 31, 2023 Upto 1 year More than 1 year Total
Non-derivatives
Borrowings 1,110.00 3,911.59 5,021.58
Trade and other payables g0.72 90.72
Other financial liabitities Non Current B 14,702.89 11,702.99
Other financial liabilities Current 7368.12 73812
Fotal non-derivatives 1,938.84 15,614.5% 17,553.42




HK TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for year ended March 31, 2024

Note 24 - Capital risk management

The Company objectives when managing capital are to

safeguard their abilily to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders

. and henefits for other stakeholders, and

Maintain an optimal capital struciure to reduce the cost of capital.

For the purpose of the Company capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, share premium, sub-debts and alf
olher equity reserves atiributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary objeclive of the Company capital management is

to maximize the shareholder value.

The Company manages ifs capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditfons and the
requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment
to shareholders, return capital o shareholders or issue interest free sub-ordinate debt. The Company monitors capital using a
gearing ratio, which is nel debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company policy is to keep optimum gearing ratio. The
Company includes within net debt, interest bearing toans and borrowings, trade payables, less cash and cash equivalents.

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company capital managemeni, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets
financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing ioans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital for the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,

Consistent with others in the industry, the group monitors capital on the basis of the following gearing ratio:

Net debl including total borrowings {net of cash and cash equivatents) divided by Tofal ‘equity’ (as shown in the balance sheet).

T Millions

Particulars

As at
March 314, 2024

As at
31st March, 2023

Net debl (a)
Equity (b)
Net debt to equity ratio (a) / (h)

4,291.07
{1,447.92)
{2.96)

4,589.83
(359.44)
(12.77)

Particulars As at As al
March 31, 2024 J1st March, 2023

Net debt {a} 4,291.07 4,589.83

Eguity (b) {1,447.92) {358.44)

Nebt debt plus Equity (¢ = a+b) 2,843.1% 4,230.39

1.51 7.08

Gearing ratio {a) / {c})




HK TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for year ended March 31, 2024

MNate - 25 Earning per share

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Frofit/ Loss attributabie to eguity sharehclders (Rs Millions) {A)
Weilghted average number of equity shares for basic and difuted earnings per share (B)
Earnings f {Loss) per share (Basic and diluted)} {(Rupees) (A/B)

Nominal vaiue of equity shares (Rupees)

{1,089.84)
37,11,000
(293.68}

10.00

(515.00)
37,14,000
(138.78)

10.00




M
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HK TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for year ended March 31, 2024

Note 26 - Related Party Transactions

As per accounling standard Ind AS 23 as prescribad under the Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015, the related parties and

transactions are disclosed below

Holding Company
Reliance Infrastructure Lirmied

Key Management Personnel

Shri Shailendra H Jain - Direclor
Shri Mahesh S Gakwad - Direclor

Details of transactions and closing balance

Pasticutars

Transactions during the year :
Balances at the year end

Trade Payable
Retliance Infrastruclure Limited

Sub-debts {in nature of equity)
Rediance infrastructure Limited

Equity share capital {exciuding premium}
Reliance Infrastructure Limiled

¥ Millions

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

24.21

3,022.60

3711

24.21

3,022 GO

3711




HKE TGLL ROAD PRIVATE LINKTED
Notes to the Finaneial Statements as of and for ihe year ended March 31, 2024

Wole 27 - Gratuity and ofher post-employment benefit plans T Millions

a} Defined contribution plan

The following amount recognized as an expense in Stalement of profil and loss on account of provident fund and other funds. There are no
aihrer ohligations other than the contribution payable to the respective autharities.

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Conlributian 1o provident furd and other funds 1.38 1.34
Total 1.38 1.34

a} Defined benefit pfan
The Company Group has a defined benefit plan (Gratuity) for its employees. The gratuily plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuily Act, 1972,
Undex the Act, employee who has completed five years of servics is entilled lo specific benelil. The level of benefits provided depends on the
members length of service and salary at retirement age. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuily on
departure al 15 days salary (last drawn salary} for each completed year of service as per the provision of the Payment of Graluily Act, 1972 with
lotat ceiling on gratuily of Rs. 1,000,000/ The said graluily ptan is funded.

The following lables surmaries the The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation over
the year are as follows:

Opening defined benefit liability / {assets) 3.1 321

Net employee benefit expense recognised in the employee cost

Currenl servicg cosl {.33 0.37
Pasi service cost - -
Interest cost on benefit obligation 0.23 0.18
{Gain) f losses on selliement - -
Net benefit expense 0,56 0.55

Amount recorded in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

Measurement during the period dus 1o

Ralurn on plan assets, excluding amounts included in inlerest expensel{income) -
Actuariat loss f (gain) arising from change in financial assumptions .05 {0 1G)

Actuarial foss f (gain} arising on account of demographic assumplions 0.03 0.04
Experience {(gains)flosses {1.43) 0.05
Amow recognized in OCI {1.36} {0.07)
Cenefits payments from plan - {0.57)
Closing net defined benefit liability / (assef} 2.3 311
Opening fair value of plan assets 4.24 2.95
Net empioyee benefit expense recognised in the employee cost

Interast cost / {income) on plan asset 0.31 0.22
{Gain} / losses on settiement - -
Net benefit expense 0.31 0.22

Amount recorded in Other Comprehensive income {OC1)
Measuremenl during the period due {6
Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest expensef{income} 0.04 0.07

Amount recognized in OCI 0.01 0.07
Employer contribulionsfpremiums patd - -

Benefils Paid - -

Closing fair vatue of plan assets 4.56 4.24




HK TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2024

¥ Millions

Pasticulars

As at
March 31, 2024

fis al
itarch 31, 2023

The net {kabikity)/assel disclosed above relales o funded plan is as follows:

Present value of funded obligalions
FFair value of plan assels
Amount not recognised as an asset {asset ceiling)

Wet fiahility is hifurcaled as follows :
Current
Man-current

Tatal

Discount rate
Expecied rate of relurn on plan assets {p.a.)
Salary escalation rale {p.a.}

Mortalily pre-retirement

A quantilalive analysts for significant assumplion is as shown below:

Assumptions -Discount rate

Sensitivily Level

tmpact on defined benefit obligation -in % increase
fmpact on defined benefil obligation -in % decrease
Assumptions -Future salary increases
Sansilivity Leveaf

Impact on defined benefil obligation -in % increase
Impact on defined benefil obligation -in % decrease

The table below shows the expected cash flow profile of the benesfils 1o be paid 1o the current membership of Lhe plan

based on past service of Ihe employees as at the valuation dale:

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporiing period)
Between 2 and 5 years

Belween 6 and 10 years

Far and Beyond 11 years

Total expected payments

The average duration of the defined benefit plan chligatian at the end of the reporting

period
Plan Assets Composition

Non Quoted
insurer Managed Funds

Y| 314
4,56 4.24
0.00 0.00
{2.26} {i.13}
7.18% 7.31%
7.18% 7.31%
8.40% B.00%
Indian Assured indian Assured Lives
Lives Mortafity Mortality
(201244} {2012-14)
100 hp 100 bp
-195% -2.93%
4.28% 314%
100 bp 100 bp
4.19% 2.06%
-3.94% -2.94%
0.34 Q.56

.31 2.20
0.87 0.78
0.74 0.49
3.25 402

4 years 4 years
4.56 4.24
4.56 4.24




HK TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for year ended March 31, 2024

Note 28 - Income Tax Expenses

The balance comprises temparary gifferences altribwable to :

Particulars

T Miltions

(a) income tax expense
Current lax
Current tax on profits for the year

Adjustrments for cuirent tax of prior periods

Total current tax expense

Deferred tay

Decreasef(increase) in deferred tax assets
{Decrease)fincrease in deferred tax fiabilities

Total deferred tax expense/{benelit)

Inceme tax expense

Income tax expense is attributable to:

Prditas per ied AS from continuing operations betore incoma tax expense
thcome Tax as per effective Tax Rate of 26%
Tax Effect of Fermanent timing differences

Totai Tax Expense

AEE
WMarch 34, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

3,546.79 52,08
{2,845.03) (37.01)
701.76 1508
701.76 15.08
(384.56) (499.92)
(99.99) (129.98)
801.74 145,06
707.76 T5.08




HK TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for year ended March 31, 2024

Note 29 - Deferred tax (liahility) f Asset

The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to :

T Millions

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

Deferred tax lability on account of:

infangible assets
Borrowings

Deferred tax asset on account of:

Unused tax losses carried forward

Leave Encashment

NHA] Premium payabie

MMR Provision/ Refention Money

Less : Excess deferred tax not provided in CY
Net deferred tax {liability)/asset

Mavement in deferred tax lHabilify / asset

2,844 45
0.58

84777
0.00
2,482.76
1(06.26

701.76

Unused Tax NHA} Premium . . -

Barticulars Losses Payable MMR Provision  Intangible assets  Borrowings Others Totat
As at April D1, 2022 1,072.589 249132 102.05 {2,381.38) (C.63) B87.11) 716.83
Charged/(credited) during the year

to profit or loss {124.83) 1.44 4,21 3694 0.07 0.0 (82.19)

to other comprehensive income - - - - - -
Excess deferred tax not provided in CY 87.11 87.11
As at March 31, 2023 947.77 2,492.76 108.26 {2,844.45) {0.58) {0.01} 701.76
Asg at Aprii 01, 2022 947 77 2,492.78 106.26 (2,844 45) {0.58) (0.013 T01.78
Charged/{credited) during the year

o profit or loss {847.77) {2,492.78) {108.26) 2,844.45 0.58 6.01 {701.76)

fo other comprehensive income

As at March 31, 2024 -

Note:-

Note : - Deffered Tax Assets/ Liability not provided in books due to reasonable uncertzinty in reliastion of future profi.



HK TOLL. ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2024

Note 30 - Assets pledged as security

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as secuwiity for current and non-cuirent borrowings are: T Millions
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current

Financial assets
First charge

Cash and cash equivalents 43.76 431.76
Other Financial Assets 132.86 16.41
Non-financial assets
First charge
Other Current Assets 5.52 7.02
Total current assets pledged as security 182.14 455.19
Non-current
First charge
Intangible Asset 15863.70 16,389.44
tntangible Assel Under Development - -
Other non current assels - .
Total non-current assets pledged as security 15,863.70 16,399.44
Total assets pledged as securify 16,045.84 16,854.63
Note 31 - Auditor Remuneration
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Audit Fees 0.24 0.25
Certification Feas 0.01

0.24 0.26




Note 32 : Bisclosure pursuant to para 44 Ato 44 E of ind AS 7 -Cash flow Statements

Year Ended March Year Ended

Particulars 31,2024 March 31,2023
Long term Borrowings
Opening Balance 5,021.60 5,580.53
interest convert inte loan -
Changes in Fair Value

- impact of Effective Rate of inlerest (2.24) 0.78
Less : Repayment During the year 673.20 5585.00
Less : Other adjustiment 11.32 4.68
Closing Balance 4,334.84 5,021.60
interest Expenses
Opening 10.89 -
interast Charge as per Statement Profit & Loss 1,579.26 2,023.90
Changes in Fair Value
Interest convert into Loan -
- impact of Effective Rate of interest 2.24 (0.75)
- Unwinding of Discount on provisions {72.45) {86.77)
- Unwinding of Discount on NHAI {1,034.70) (1,318.31)
- Other 124.89 -
Interest paid to Lenders {579.33) {607.18)

30.80 10,89 |

Closing Balance




HK TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2024

Ratio anaylsis - Note 33

Particulars Mar-24 WMar-23 Yo Reason for change

11 Current ratio (aff) 08.57 0.6t G%

Curreint Assets (a) 104 47 503.23

Current Liability excluding current maturity of L.ong 33958 83059

Term Loan (b

2) Debt Equity ratio (c/d) {2.99) {13.97) 367% Due to conlinual incurring of losses,
Dbt {¢) 4,334.84 5,021.59 equily has heen reduced resulling in
Equity {d) {1,447.92) {359.44) negative ralio.

3} Debt Service Coverage ratlo ( eff} 045 1.21 170% Due 1o Debt servicing increase in CY
EBITDA (e} 1.095.15 2 499 .65 and alsc EBIDTA also decreased as
Inlerest on Term Loan 47077 618.81 compaic (o lasl year

Principal Repaymant 1,808.50 1,110.00

Tolal Interest & Principal Repayment {1} 2,279.27 1,728.81

4) Return on Equity ratio (gfh) 1.21 505 219% Due to continual incurring of losses,
Profil / {(L.oss) after Tax {g) {1,089.85} (515.00) equity has been reduced

Average Shareholder's Equity (h) (903.68} (102,20}

5) Trade Payable Turnover ratio {ifj) £.09 0.04 5%, Ratio incieased due to lincrease iin
Trade Payable i) 185.73 90,72 lrade payable as compare 1o lasl yeal
Tatal Turnover{income) {} 2,101.42 2,352.82

6} Net Capital Turnover ratio (1K) {0.07) {0.14) 101% Ralic marginal increased on acoount of:
Total Salss (k) 2,101.42 2,352.82 recuced in current liabitilies

Currenl Assels (i) 194 47 503.23

Current Liabilities (m) 339.59 830.59

Working Capital (n) {i-m} {14512} (327.36}

7) Net Profit ratio (0.52) {0.223 -56% Due to Loss during the year

Profit after Tax (m) (1,089.85} {515.00)

Tolal Sates (n) 210142 2,352.82

8) Refurn on Capital Employed (oft} 0.36 C.45 27% Due 1o negalive nel worth as compare
EBITDA {0} 1,025.15 2,099.65 1o fast year

Net Worth {p) (1,447.92) {359.44)

Tolal Bebt (q} 4,334.84 §,021.58

Total Capital Empioyed ('r) {o+q} 2,886.H 4.662.15

9} Return en Investment (s/t) (0.71) {5.84) 725% Bue to negalive netl worth as compare
EBITDA (s) 1025.15 2,099.65 to last year

Nel Warth () {1.447.92) {359.44)
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Notes to the Financial Statements for year ended March 31, 2024

Note 34 — Contingent Habilities

FASTag Penally : -The company has been collecling penalty from the users for using FASTag lanes without valid
FASTag, the same has been considered as par of income of the company since the company is of the view that
the same is nol payable to NHA! notwithstanding the demands from NHAL The aggregate amount of penaily
collecled and approprialed under income for March 31, 2024 is Rs.14.65 Mn { Previous Year Rs.22.01 Mn)

The indirect tax authorities during an investigation in Financial Year 2016 stated that the Company was not eligible
to avail CENVAT credit as lhere was no oulput service liable to 1ax. The department issued an order in April 2016
demanding interest on the CENVAT credit availed for period October 2010 to March 2012 and penalty on account
of wilful suppression of facts. The Company has appealed against such order before the Tax Appellate Tribunal.
The tribunal has set aside the said adjudication order against which department has now gone in appeal before the
Hon'ble High Court of Mumbai.

Nole No. 35 : - Termination of the Project : - On May 12, 2023, NHAI issued a notice of intention 1o terminate {JOT
Notice) the Concession Agreement (CA}. On May 27, 2023 ihe response has been submitted by the Comapny
against 10T Notice. In order o avoid the termination of Concession Agreement on the issue of alieged breaches of
maintenance obligations & alleged non-payment of deferred premium, The Company has invoked arbitration
against NHAI on August 08, 2023,

However, before conslitule of Arbifral Tribunal NHAI untawfully terminated the project with effect from 22.01.2024.
On 23.01.2024 the Company filed petition under Section - 8 before DHC for stay on termination notice. DHC vide
its order dated 25.01.2024 disposed off the Peiition and directed parties to freat the present petition as an
application ufs. 17 of the Arbitration and Conciliation Act. Preliminary hearing application ufs. 17 has been
completed and next dale of hearing is awaited.

Note No. 36 Going Concern : The company has incurred net loss of Rs. 1089.85 Mn during the year ended March
31, 2024 and has negative net worth of Rs. 1447 .92 millions as on March 31, 2024 due {o losses incurred in current
FY 24.

As explained in Note No. 35 above related 1o unlawiully fermination, taking a note of the section 17 proceedings,
pending adjudicalion, the Arbitrat Tribunal is prima facie of lhe opinion that the Company has been performing/
fulfilling its obligations under the CA. Further, in view of the financial proposal submitted by the Company in regards
to the capacity of the Company to carry out Stage Construction Works as also the credibility of its third-party
conlractor, there is a reasonable apprehension that the Tribunal may keep the Termination Notice dated
22.01.2024 in abeyance and allow the Company fo perform its duties under as the Concessionaire under the
Concession Agreement.

The status thereof is being reviewed on an ongoing basis and necessary effect, if any, shail be taken depending
upon lhe development in the matter

Notwithstanding the dependence on above said uncertain events, the company continues to prepare the financial
statemenis on a going concern basis.




HK TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to the Financial Statements for year ended March 3%, 2024

Note 37- Foreign currency Exposure
The Company does hot have any exposure in the foreign Currency.

Note 38 ~ Events after reporting period
There are no subsequent event after the reporling period which required adjusiments to the Financial Statements.

Note 39

Previous year figures have been regrouped and re-arranged wherever necessary to make them comparable to those for current
year.
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